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1 General Information 
This Request for Information (RFI) is issued by the Consortium for Energy Efficiency 
(CEE) to solicit necessary information to procure a cataloging tool for assessment of 
emerging energy efficient technologies (herein “Catalog Tool”). The purpose of this 
Catalog Tool is to support sharing of high level (defined below) information on 
emerging technology assessments, track the progress of those assessment efforts 
over time, and provide a platform for sharing results of those assessments. CEE is 
soliciting information on existing tools, or enhancements of existing tools, that meet 
the defined requirements below. 

2 Background 
CEE is a nonprofit 501(c)3 corporation that works via member committees to 
accelerate the market introduction and acceptance of new, high efficiency products 
and services to achieve greater energy efficiency for the public good. One such 
member committee supports energy efficiency program administrators in assessing 
emerging technologies. These are technologies or market services that are 
commercialized, but underutilized, and require further testing before being included 
in efficiency programs. The Catalog Tool is expected to support this committee by 
cataloging and describing assessment projects (both planned and in progress) and, 
over time, track the status, progress, and related results of the various projects. This 
includes the identification of over 300 projects that relate to a variety of technologies 
and market services. For each project, the Catalog Tool will capture with in it 
information about the project itself (for example: the name of the technology or 
market service and research question being asked), the type of project (for example: 
whether the research is being conducted in a laboratory setting or in the field), 
timing of the project, summary results of the project testing, and a check list of what 
dimensions have been tested verses those that require further testing. Additionally, 
as results become available for each project, the Catalog Tool will link to a detailed 
report about the project. This will enable users to understand who is doing which 
projects, locate and access results of those projects, and understand the progress of 
testing on a specific project over time. 

To date, CEE has used a spreadsheet to capture and track these various assessment 
projects (one project per row, resulting in over 300 rows of data on these projects).  
Currently, this information is coming from 12 organizations from across the US and 
Canada. Each organization has their own internal system of cataloging their 
individual projects (for example: spreadsheets, databases), but they are also 
providing their project information for this central spreadsheet to have a single place 
where this information is captured and tracked.  

While the current spreadsheet is sufficient for capturing the current status of each 
assessment, it is time consuming for users to update the information on their 
projects. Since the users have their own tracking systems, they are currently 
updating information in two places (their internal system and this central 
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spreadsheet). CEE is looking to a Catalog Tool that will reduce the time required to 
update information by, for example, enabling an upload of information from their 
existing tracking systems to this single Catalog Tool.  

Additionally, the spreadsheet has limited ability to easily track the progress of 
projects by project or create reports of the data sorted on significant variables. CEE is 
seeking a Catalog Tool that will also enable versioning or tracking of projects as 
information is updated and provide custom reporting capability. Ideally, the 
Catalog Tool will enable users to quickly access current information around each 
project and, with a click of a button, dig into the history of the project and find any 
detailed reports on the testing.  

3 Tool Requirements 
3.1 General Requirements 

CEE is searching for a tool that may already exist and requires limited configuration 
or customization to meet our requirements. The following sections outline the 
specific requirements and functionality that CEE is seeking in the Catalog. Please 
respond to all questions included within this Section. The goal of this RFI is to 
identify a solution that meets these requirements at a reasonable cost.  

3.2 Required Tool Features and Functionality 
The solution should include the ability to customize a number of different field 
types. The table below identifies the set of data field types already identified by 
CEE. In the table, please respond to the following: 

 Y = Yes, standard in the tool 
 N = Not available  
 F = Field, feature, functionality can be added (Note: comments required and 

please estimate the level of effort (LOE) required to add the field or feature as 
low, medium, or high) 

 
Field Type Quantity Y/N/F Comments Anticipated 

LOE 
Open text 17    
Preset options 7    
Autofill/Automatically update 4    
Yes/No option 10    
Link to website/file 1    

 
In addition to the above fields, CEE is seeking a solution with the following 
functionality. This functionality is important for reducing the time required to 
update, enable version tracking, and support other core work of the CEE. In the 
table below, please respond to the following: 
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 Y = Yes, standard in the tool 
 N = Not available  
 F = Field, feature, functionality can be added (Note: comments required and 

please estimate the level of effort (LOE) required to add the field or feature as 
low, medium, or high) 

 

Functionality Y/N/F Comments Anticipated 
LOE 

Integration (user authentication, content type) 
with CEE Forum (Drupal-based document 
management system) 

   

Modular design: the tool can be adapted for 
other projects with different fields, users, etc. 

   

Web-based application to enable authorized 
users to import data, view data, and create 
custom reports 

   

Import data and record updates into tool from a 
variety of file formats, including XML, Excel 

   

User-specific custom import data mappings: 
users can save data import mapping (field 
order, format, etc.) to reuse for subsequent 
imports of updates 

   

Export data into custom reports, sorting on a 
number of significant fields to a variety of file 
formats, including XML, Excel  

   

Track changes or version history of specific 
records 

   

Link related records to enable data sharing 
across those records (an organization providing 
data may have multiple related projects that 
share some, but not all data, and linking these 
related projects will enable users to better 
understand the full picture of the opportunity) 

   

 

In addition to answering the above questions, please describe the known reporting 
capability of the tool. 

  



Request for Information: ET Assessment Catalog Tool 

6                                  © 2013 Consortium for Energy Efficiency, Inc. All rights reserved 
 

3.3 User Roles and Functionality 
The Catalog Tool will require the following levels of user access: 

Authorized User Create Read Update Delete 
Administrator: Individual maintaining the tool 
and supporting users in access (CEE staff 
person) 

Yes
All data 

Yes
All data 

Yes 
All data 

Yes
All data 

Catalog Participant (Data Provider): An 
authorized user that provides data into the tool 

Yes
Own data 

Yes
All data 

Yes 
Own data 

Yes
Own data 

Catalog Observer: An authorized user that has 
access to view the data, but does not provide 
any data into the tool 

No  Yes
All data 

No No 

 

Please describe how you propose to limit the data to authorized users and manage 
their access according to their permissions.  

3.4 Capabilities—Software Architecture 
Provide a description of the technical architecture of the proposed solution. Below 
are the types of questions that might be relevant to determining the fit of the 
proposed solution with our internal needs: 

1. What architecture is used in your application? 
2. Other than your software, what other third-party software is used in your 

application? 
3. What database does your application use? 
4. What programming languages were used to build your application? 
5. Are there any components of the system that must reside on another platform? 
6. What are the recommended specifications for applications servers used to 

support the proposed solution? 
7. What features of your tool are configurable? 
8. What is the growth potential of the proposed system? 
9. What is the timeframe for the technical obsolescence of the proposed software? 
10. What maintenance is required? 
11. Can your proposed web application be hosted from a Drupal 6 multisite 

installation on a standard LAMP architecture within the same codebase as an 
existing web application? (e.g., can you implement the solution as a Drupal 6 
module?) 

3.5 Capabilities – Software Releases 
Discuss the following aspects of anticipated future releases of your proposed tool. 
Below are the types of questions that might be relevant to determining the fit of the 
proposed solution with our internal needs: 

1. What types (maintenance, enhancement, other) of releases are planned? 
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2. What is the historical (past three years) and expected frequency of each type of 
new release? 

3. What is the current version of the current release? 
4. How is the content of future releases determined? 
5. How is the content of a release communicated to the client? 
6. Are enhancements made for specific clients included in future releases? 
7. What specific enhancements are planned for release within the next 24 months? 
8. What resources, planning, and technical skills are required to install a release of 

each type? 
9. Can components of a release be applied individually or by module without 

adversely affecting the overall functionality of the system? 
10.  Do configuration settings carry forward from one release to the next or must 

they be reinstalled? 
11.  Do patches carry forward from one release to the next, or must they be 

reinstalled? 
12.  How long is a release supported? 

3.6 Capabilities—Hardware 
Please respond to the following questions: 

13. What hardware does the software operate on? 
14. Is hardware shared by multiple customer applications? 
15. Describe your server patching and updating process. 

3.7 Capabilities—Ad Hoc Reporting 
Provide an overview of the ad hoc reporting capability that your solution provides. 
If a third-party tool is employed, identify and describe the tool. Discuss capability, 
sophistication, and ease of use, including training required. 

Describe how the following needs are addressed: 

16. Ad hoc reporting in terms of selecting fields and field values. 
17. Creation of data extracts. 
18. Historical reporting. 

3.8 Cost 
CEE is looking to buy or license any solution for a lump sum and own the final 
Catalog Tool. Therefore, please provide the cost to buy or license the tool for a lump 
sum plus the approximate level of effort (LOE) to for customization to meet the 
requirements and the billing rates for your company. Please also specify any 
additional third-party licensing or subscription costs associated with your solution.  

3.9 Licensing Terms 
CEE wants to understand any restrictions on our ability to use the proposed tool 
Therefore, for all the components of the solution, please identify any terms of 
licensing. Please also provide the owner of the components and whether they are 
protected by patent or copyright.  
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3.10 Ownership of Data 
The software tool provider cannot make use of any data provided into the Catalog 
Tool, nor can they disclose the data to any other parties.  

4 Requested Information 
Please complete all questions above in Section 3. This information will enable us to 
further scope the project and develop a short list of potential vendors for a future 
Request for Proposal or Request for Bid. 

5 Response Instructions 
Vendors are requested to submit their response by Friday, April 5. Responses 
received after this date will be accepted, but entry into the examination process will 
not be guaranteed. Please send all responses and inquires to:  

Jennifer Anziano 
Email: janziano@cee1.org 
Telephone: (617) 532-0993 

6 Vendor Contact 
Please provide a primary contact name, address, email address, and telephone 
number in the response.  

7 Vendor Presentations 
Based on interest that is generated following a review of the responses to this RFI, 
some vendors may be invited to present an overview and demonstration of their 
proposed design, equipment, and associated services. There is no guarantee that a 
vendor may be asked to provide a presentation. All presentation costs incurred by 
the vendor shall be born by the vendor. 

8 Liability 
This RFI has been issued to obtain information and to determine what alternative 
choices and options exist for development of an Emerging Technology Assessment 
Catalog Tool. This solicitation is not intended to result in a contract or vendor 
agreement with any respondent. 

This solicitation for information does not commit CEE to publish a Request for 
Proposal, Request for Bid, or award a contract. CEE shall not be liable for any costs 
incurred by the vendor in preparation of its response. 

9 Closing 
The Consortium for Energy Efficiency thanks you for your efforts in preparing a 
response. We anticipate that the information gathered in this project will be highly 
beneficial and will assist the organization in making the best decisions related to the 
procurement a cataloging tool.  


